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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 35thAnnual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be held on Thursday, 
the 25thSeptember,2025 at 11 AM through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM) facility to 
transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the company as at 31stMarch, 2025 and the Profit & 
Loss Account for the year ended on that date together with Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Vangallu Kodanda Ram (DIN:06967765) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.  

3. To fix the remuneration of statutory auditors

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions ofthe 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time. M/s.K.GopalRao& Co, 
Chartered Accountants, T.Nagar, Chennai (Firm Registration No.00956S with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India) who were appointed by the Shareholders in the 32ndAnnual General Meeting held in Sept., 
2022 as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of V.M.V.S.Rao 
& Co, Chartered Accountants, Nellore  to hold office for a term of five years from the conclusion of the 32nd Annual 
General Meeting until the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting to be held in Sept., 2027, be paid a 
remuneration of Rs.50,000/- (Rupees Fifty thousand only) to conduct the audit for the financial year 2025-26, 
payable in one or more instalments plus goods and services tax as applicable and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred if any.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Audit Committee be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,matters 
and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient, to give effect to this resolution.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the 
Companies’ Act, 2013 and the rules made there under ( including any statutory modifications or enactment thereof) 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to applicable Article of the Article of Association of 
the Company, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr Pavan Kumar 
Matli (DIN:02438906) as MANAGING DIRECTOR of the Company for a period of five years commencing from 
01.07.2025 on the remuneration, terms and conditions as recommended by the  Remuneration Committee and as 
set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to alter or vary the scope of 
remuneration of Mr Pavan Kumar Matli, Managing Director including the monetary value thereof to the extent 
recommended by the Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be considered appropriate subject to the 
overall limits specified by this resolution and the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things which may be usual, expedient or proper to give effect to the 
above resolution.
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Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board
For ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar Matli

Whole Time Director
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NOTES

1. The Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts concerning the 
business under Item No 4 of the accompanying Notice is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors of the company at its 
meeting held on 21st August, 2025 considered that the special business under No. 4 being considered unavoidable, be 
transacted at the 35th AGM of the company.

2. The Register of members and share transfer books of the company shall remain closed for two days i.e., from 19th to 20th 
Sept.2025 only those Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Register 
of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on 18th Sept.2025 (the cutoff/record date)will be entitled to cast 
their votes by remote e-Voting or for those Members participating in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility.

3. General Instructions for accessing and participating in the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM facility and voting through 
electronic means including remote e-voting:

a. Keeping In view of the various circulars/guidelines issued by MCA/SEBI, the 35th AGM of the Company is being 
conducted through VC/OAVM facility, which does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The 
deemed venue for the 35th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

b. In terms of the MCA circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, there is no 
requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members under Section 
105 of the Act will not be available for the 35th AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, 
representatives of the Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting for participation 
in the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting during the 35th AGM.

In line with the MCA/SEBI circulars, the Notice of the 35th AGM along with Annual Report will be available on the 
website of the Company at www.aail.in on the website of BSE Ltd. at www.bseindia.com and also on the website of 
M/s MUFG Intime IndiaPvt.Ltd.https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. In conformity with the regulatory requirements, only 
soft copies will be forwarded through email. Those who have not registered their email ID may do so. 

As per LODR amendment draft (Amendment in Regulation 36 (1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ) the listed entity is required to send soft copies of full annual report to all those 
shareholder(s) who have registered their email address(es) and in addition to this are required to send a letter 
providing the web-link, including the exact path, where complete details of the annual report are available to those 
shareholder(s)who have not registered their email address(es) either with the Depositories or Company/MUFG 
Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited), Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of 
the Company. The same will be forwarded to the shareholders giving clear 21 days’ notice prior to the AGM. For 
assistance, please contact the RTA, M/s.MUFGIntime India Pvt.Ltd.

c. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM facility, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

d. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.(Link) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting , for participation in the 35th 
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting during the 35th AGM, guidelines for which are separately given.

e. Members may join the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM facility by following the procedure as mentioned below which 
shall be kept open for the Members from 10.30 AM IST i.e., 30 minutes before the time scheduled to start the 35th 
AGM and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM facility 30 minutes after the scheduled time to 
start the 35th AGM.

f. Members may note that the VC/OAVM facility provided by MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd., allows participation of at least 
2000 members on a first-come-first served basis. The largest shareholders, i.e., shareholders holding 2% or more 
shareholding) promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, auditors etc. can 
attend the 35th AGM without any restriction.

g. Attendance of the Members participating in the 35th AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. At the 32ndAGM held on 28th Sept., 2022 the Members approved appointment of M/s. M/s.K. Gopal Rao & Co, Chartered 
Accountants, T.Nagar, Chennai (Firm Registration No.00956S with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India) as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five years from the conclusion of the 32nd Annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting to be held in Sept., 2027. Resolution to fix the 
remuneration of M/s.GopalRao& Co. for Financial Year 2025-26 forms part of this Notice. 

5. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of 
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securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 
Members can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s.MUFGIntime India Pvt.Ltd. for 
assistance in this regard.

6. Members are requested to preferably send their queries to the Regd. Office seven days before the date of 35th AGM.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015, and Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing remote e-Voting 
facility to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 35th AGM and facility for those Members 
participating in the AGM to cast vote through e-Voting system during the 35th  AGM.

8. Electronic copy of all documents referred to in the Notice of 35th AGM shall be available for inspection in the website of 
the Company. . 

9. Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders:

The voting period begins on 22.09.2025 at 9.30 AM and ends on 24.09.2025 at 5 PM. During this period shareholders’ of 
the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e., 18.09.2025 
(record date) may cast their vote by remote e-Voting.The e-voting module shall be disabled by MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
for voting thereafter.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access e-
Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders registered with NSDL IDeAS facility 

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.comand click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”. 

b) Enter User ID and Password. Click on “Login”

c) After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services. 

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

OR

Shareholders who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click on 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

b) Proceed with updating the required fields. 

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password. 

d) After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services. 

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 



d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services. 

d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

METHOD 1 – Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility

Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility:

a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or www.cdslindia.com.

b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab

c) Login with existing my easi username and password 

d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will have links of e-voting service 
providers i.e., MUFG InTime, for voting during the remote e-voting period.

e) Click on “Link InTime/ MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 
redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

OR

Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility:

a) To register, visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration/ 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.

c) Post registration, user will be provided username and password. 

d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.

e) Click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be 
redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com

b) Go to e-voting tab.

c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”.

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in Demat Account 

e) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your depository 
participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility. 

a) Login to DP website

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option. 

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website after successful authentication, 
wherein user can see e-voting feature.

d) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s 
Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / 

Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode as on the 
cut-off date for e-voting may register for InstaVote as under:

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in
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Shareholders who have not registered for INSTAVOTE facility:

b) Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: 

A. User ID:

NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.

CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

B. PAN: 

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: 

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in 
DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: 

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company.

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

**Shareholders holding shares in Physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio 
number in ‘D’ above

FSet the password of your choice 

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character (!#$&*), at least one 
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

FEnter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code

FClick “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote). 

Shareholders who have registered for INSTAVOTE facility:

c) Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

A. User ID: Enter your User ID

B. Password: Enter your Password

C. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code

D. Click “Submit”

d) Cast your vote electronically:

A. After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”. 

B. Select ‘View’ icon. 

C. E-voting page will appear. 

D. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish 
to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

E. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click 
on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”)

STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

b) Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” 

c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form. 



d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email ID (which is filled at 
the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the 
entity & stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.  

e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary contact person’s email ID. (You 
have now registered on InstaVote)

STEP 2 – Investor Mapping 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section 

c) Map the Investor with the following details: 

A. ‘Investor ID’ – 

i. NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678

ii. CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

B. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP. 

C. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN. 

D. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney. 

*File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures. 

E. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Entity). The 
same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.  

STEP 3 – Voting through remote e-voting

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period. 

METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section. 

c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote. 

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”.  

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.” for which you want to cast vote. 

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to 
view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

f) After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on 
‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

OR

METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login credentials.

b) After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”. 

c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”. 

d) E-voting page will appear. 

e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab. 

f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote file and upload the same under 
“Upload Vote File” option. 

g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.
(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it subsequently).
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Helpdesk:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode facing 
any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Login Type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 
with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 
with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

Forgot Password:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have 
forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option 
available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

FClick on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

FClick “forgot password?” 

FEnter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 

FClick on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 
Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the Security 
Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. The password should contain a 
minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least 
one capital letter. 

User ID: 

NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID. 

CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. 

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the 
shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

FClick on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab 

FClick “forgot password?” 

FEnter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). 

FClick on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 
Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the particulars of the Security 
Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special 
character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password: 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both, 
then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned 
depository/ depository participants website.

FIt is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 

FFor shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice.

FDuring the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the 
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Team InstaVote

MUFG Intime India Private Limited 

Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited

10. INSTAMEET VC INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR ATTENDING AND VOTING AT THE AGM

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024, the Companies can 
conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video Conference (VC) or other audio-visual 
means (OAVM). 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts to access 
InstaMeetfacility.

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

a) Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login”. 

b) Select the “Company Name” and register with your following details: 

c) Select Check Box - Demat Account No. / Folio No. / PAN

• Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDSL demat account shall select check box - Demat Account No. and enter 
the 16-digit demat account number.

• Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box – Folio No. and enter the Folio Number 
registered with the company. 

• Shareholders shall select check box – PAN and enter 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN). Shareholders 
who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number 
provided by MUFG Intime, if applicable. 

• Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not updated their 
Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no.

• Email ID: Email Id as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders who have not updated their Mobile 
No with the DP shall enter the mobile no.

d) Click “Go to Meeting” 

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeting.

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request with the company. 

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the company. 

c) Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting. Please remember 
speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your device.

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as “Speaker Shareholder” may still ask questions to the panellist via active 
chat-board during the meeting.

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and 
serial number for speaking. 

e) Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not exercised their vote through the 
remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”
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b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered 
email Id) received during registration for InstaMeet

c) Click on 'Submit'. 

d) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for 
voting. 

e) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which 
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'.

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click 
on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 
modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note: 

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted their vote on 
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
facility during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ 
participate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for better 
experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or 
LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Helpdesk:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a request at 
instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000 / 4918 6175.

Team InstaMeet
MUFG Intime India Private Limited 
Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited

Team InstaVote 
MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)

Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board
For ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar Matli

Whole Time Director
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES’ ACT, 2013

ITEM NO.4

As the shareholders are aware, the appointment of Mr Pavan Kumar Matli (DIN No.02438906) as Whole Time Director 
expired on 30th June, 2025. The Board of Directors have in their meeting held on 13th Aug., 2025 subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, re-appointed Mr Pavan Kumar Matli as a Managing Director for a further period of five 
years with effect from 1st July, 2025, on the remuneration, terms and conditions recommended by the remuneration 
committee as set out herein:

a) Salary : Rs.55000/- per month with annual increment of Rs. 5000/-.

b) Residential accommodation: Shall be provided free furnished residential accommodation.

c) Perquisites and allowances: In addition to the above salary and residential accommodation, he shall be entitled to the 
following perquisites and allowances restricted to an amount equal to Annual salary in a financial year:

i) Gas, electricity, water, furnishing and other amenities and repairs at his residence

ii) Club fees:  Actual fees of one Club reimbursed; but no life membership fees

iii) Leave Travel concession: For self and family once in a year incurred in accordance with the rules of the Company

iv) Facility of one car with driver

The above perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per income tax rules, wherever applicable. In the 
absence of any such rules, these shall be evaluated at actual cost.

d) Other benefits:

i) Contribution to provident fund, pension/superannuation/gratuity fund schemes in accordance with the rules and 
regulations of the company in force from time to time,

ii) One month leave with full salary for every eleven months of service

iii) Reimbursement of actual medical expenses incurred in India or abroad for self and family including hospitalization 
expenses,

iv) Medical/Personal accident/Travel insurance; Actual premium to be paid by the company for self and family.

v) Telephone: Free telephone facility at residence including mobile phone and other suitable communication facilities.

The above benefits will not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites and allowances.

e) Minimum Remuneration: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, where, in any financial year 
during the currency of the tenure of Mr Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole Time Director, the company has no profits or its 
profits are inadequate, the company will pay a sum mentioned at a)above as minimum remuneration .

Mr Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole Time Director, being the appointee and Dr.Matli Srutha Keerthi, being his relative may 
be deemed to be concerned or interested in the said Resolution. No other director, key managerial personnel or their 
relatives are concerned or interested in the said Resolution. 

This resolution is   recommended for the approval of Members by way of Ordinary Resolution.

BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 35thANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING AS REQUIRED IN TERMS OF CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT.

1. Shri Vangallu Kodanda Ram

Shri Vangallu Kodandaram, (DIN:06967765) an alumnus of Loyola Institute of Business Admn., Chennai, is a double Post 
Graduate from Central Michigan University, Mt pleasant USA in Master of Science in Administration and Kingston College, 
Burnaby, Canada. in information resource management. His Engg. Degree is from Sri Venkateswara college of Engg, 
University of Madras, India.

Before becoming a Director on the Board of Diplomat Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Mr. Kodandaram had a successful career in 
various multinational technological companies at senior positions.

He has extensive experience in system administration, human resource and information management. He has good 
understanding of warehousing and supply chain management in manufacturing industries, in Printing and Publishing 
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Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board
For ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar Matli

Whole Time Director

modules in the education industry, in Software Deployment solutions like IBM –Tivoli, Micrsoft –SMS / Soft Grid and CA-
Unicenter and hands on Experience in developing business process solution with multiple third party software integration. His 
strong organizational skills have already been demonstrated in the areas of System Installation/Configuration, 
Troubleshooting and Problem solving, PC training and hardware & software purchasing. To top it all, he has excellent 
corporate communication skills with good business acumen, Analytical, problem-solving, decision-making and project 
management skills.

Companies other than Ashiana Agro Industries Ltd. in which Mr.Vangallu Kodanda Ram holds Directorship and 
Committee Membership

Directorship:

Serengeti Holdings Pvt. Ltd Rakhi Transports Pvt. Ltd. Star Alcobev Pvt. Ltd.
Zainab Trading Pvt. Ltd. Diplomat Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. Lipi Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Vasavi Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. Hiwide Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. Samhita Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Prabhat Publishers Pvt. Ltd. Star Alcobev& Distributors Pvt. Ltd. River View Apartments Chennai Pvt. Ltd.

Chairman of Board Committees - Nil

Member of Board Committees - Nil

Shareholding in Company - Nil

2. Mr. Pavan Kumar Matli

MrPavan Kumar Matli is a qualified Engineer (B.E.Mechanical Engineering) with specialization in the field of automotive 
engineering, automotive modeling and simulation techniques.  He understands vehicle design and can contribute to 
operational efficiency of vehicles. He is very practical and is a quick leaner of engineering trends even  besides his field of 
specialization. MrPavan hails from an agricultural background.  He can contribute in increase in better quality of agricultural 
produce and increase in production by introducing modern techniques .

Companies other than Ashiana Agro Industries Ltd. in which Mr Pavan Kumar Matli holds  Directorship and 
Committee Membership

Directorship :

Serengeti Holdings Pvt.Ltd. Lipi Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. Star Alcobev Pvt. Ltd.
Pixie Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. Vani Theatres Pvt. Ltd. Samhita Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Hiwide Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. River View Apartments Chennai Pvt. Ltd.
Prabhat Publishers Pvt. Ltd. Star Alcobev& Distributors Pvt. Ltd.

Chairman of Board Committees - Nil

Member of Board Committees - Nil

Shareholding in Company - Nil



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To The Members

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting their 34th Annual Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summarized financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are as follows:-

 Rupees in Lacs

2024-25 2023-24

Total Income 96.36 115.80

Profit/(Loss) before  Exceptional items and Tax 11.36 12.93

Exceptional Items : - -

Depreciation: - - - -

Profit before tax 11.36 12.93

Less: Tax Expenses 2.86 0.50

Profit/Loss(-) for the Year 8.50 12.43

Earnings per Share (EPS):

1. Basic 0.27 0.18

2. Diluted 0.27 0.18

Balance Loss (-) brought forward from previous year (-) 206.88 (-)219.31

Less: Income tax Expenses for the FY.2023-24 (-) 2.89 -

Balance carried to Balance Sheet (Loss) (-)201.27 (-)206.88

Keeping in view the accumulated losses and the negligible profit for the year under review, the directors are unable to 
recommend payment of any dividend for the year under review.

As regards “Notes to Accounts”, the directors wish to clarify that the loan has been advanced to Diadem enterprises Pvt. Ltd 
duly complying with the relevant provisions of the Companies’ act, 2013 and is within the permissible limit laid down under the 
provisions of the said Act. Pending deployment of funds in other Projects, the company could earn interest to meet its day to 
day expenses and other liabilities. The loan is repayable on demand. The Company is in the process of identifying Projects 
wherein it can invest its funds for the long term for the benefit of its shareholders.

OPERATIONS

Your Company has achieved a total income of Rs.96.36 lacs and the Profit before Exceptional items and Tax has been 
Rs.11.36 lacs. Your Company has paid a tax of Rs.2.86 lacs for the year under review. The net profit after Tax for the year is 
Rs.8.50 lacs. Your Company has accumulated losses of Rs.201.27 lacs for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025 after 
adjusting the tax expense of Rs.2.89 lacs related to FY.2023-24.

The new management has identified Packaging Materials business as a new area. The new management has the expertise 
and experience to run this type of business.

DIRECTORS

As the shareholders are aware, the appointment of Mr Pavan Kumar Matli (Din No.02438906) as Whole Time Director expired 
on 30th June, 2025. The Board of Directors have in their meeting held on 13th Aug., 2025,subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, re-appointed Mr Pavan Kumar Matli as MANAGING DIRECTOR for a further period of 
five years with effect from 1st July, 2025 on the remuneration, terms and conditions recommended by the remuneration 
committee as set out in the Explanatory statement.

At the ensuing AGM Shri Vangallu Kodandaram (DIN:06967765) retires by rotation and is eligible for re-election. Resolution 
seeking approval of shareholders for re-appointment of this director forms part of the Notice.
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ShriKranthikumarChimakurthiandShriVamsidhar Reddy Mandipati continue as Independent Directors. The shareholders 
have appointed both of them as Independent Directorsin the last AGM by Special Resolutions for a term of four years w.e.f. 9th 
Aug.2024 and 8th Nov., 2024 respectively.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors 
have submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 
along with Rules framed there under and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. There has been no change in 
the circumstances affecting their status as independent directors of the Company. During the year under review, the non-
executive directors of the company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees 
and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the 
Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 
31.03.2025 are Shri.Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole Time Director, Shri.E.D.MohananMenon, Company Secretary and 
Shri.Nandhivarman G, Chief Finance Officer. The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs 
from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board process, 
information and functioning, etc. In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors to maintain the 
independence of the Board and separate its functions of governance and management. As of March 31, 2025, the Board had 
five members, consisting of a Whole Time Director, two non-executive and non-independent directors and two independent 
directors. One of the directors of the Board is a woman. The details of Board and committee composition, tenure of directors, 
areas of expertise and other details are available elsewhere this Report. 

The policy of the Company on directors'' appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, is available on our website

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025, Board Meetings held on 23.04.24,24.05.24, 14.08.24, 22.08.24, 13.11.24 and 
13.02.25 and Independent Directors held a separate meeting on 31stMarch, 2025.The maximum interval between any two 
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company has a policy of appointing adequately qualified persons only to the Board keeping in view the requirements of 
listing agreement with the stock exchanges and the Corporate Governance guidelines.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the Financial Year under reporting, Audit Committee met on23.04.24, 24.05.24, 14.08.24, 22.08.24, 13.11.24 and 
13.02.25. Stake holders Grievances Committee met on 10.04.24, 10.07.24, 09.10.24 and 09.01.25. Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee met on 24.05.24, and 22.08.24. Share Transfer Committee met on 01.10.24, 24.12.24 and 
21.01.25.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Shri Kranthi Kumar Chimakurthi and Shri Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati continue as Independent Directors. The shareholders 
have appointed both of them as Independent Directors in the last AGM by Special Resolutions for a term of four years w.e.f. 9th 
Aug.2024 and 8th Nov., 2024 respectively.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors 
have submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act 
along with Rules framed there under and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Independent directors held a separate meeting on 31st March, 2025 to review the operations, evaluate other directors and 
assess the flow of information to shareholders and regulatory compliances.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All new independent directors inducted into the Board attend an orientation program. Further, at the time of the appointment of 
an independent director, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment outlining his / her role, function, duties and 
responsibilities. 

BOARD COMMITTEES

As on March 31, 2025, the Board had four committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Share transfer Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
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During the year, all recommendations made by the committees were approved by the Board. A detailed note on the 
composition of the Board and its committees are as under:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Shri. Kranti Kumar Chimakurthi an Independent Director continues as Chairman and Shri.Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati, 
another Independent Director and Mr. Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole time Director continues as Members. Audit Committee met 
six times during the Financial Year on 23.04.24, 24.05.24, 14.08.24, 22.08.24, 13.11.24 and 13.02.25.Shri.E.D.M.Menon, 
Company Secretary is Secretary to the Committee.

The role and duties of the audit committee have been defined by the Board of directors and generally cover the areas 
mentioned under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 besides other terms as may be referred to the Committee by the Board of 
Directors from time to time.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Shri. Vangallu Kodanda Ram, Director continutes as Chairman and Shri Matli Pavan Kumar, WTD, and Shri Vamsidhar Reddy 
Mandipati, Independent Director continue as Members. Stakeholders Grievances Committee met four times during the 
Financial Year on 10.04.24, 10.07.24, 09.10.24 and 09.01.25. Shri EDM Menon, Company Secretary is the compliance 
officer. The Company has attended to all valid requests for transfer received during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and no 
such transfer is pending.

NOMINATION & REMUERATION COMMITTEE

Shri.Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati, Independent Director continues as Chairman and Shri. Krantikumar Chimakurthi and 
Shri.VangalluKodanda Ram continue as Members. The Committee met twice during the Financial Year on 24.05.24 and 
22.08.24 to review the remuneration of Directors, Executives and others.

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Share Transfer Committee has been formed to look into share transfer and related applications received from 
Shareholders, with a view to accelerate the transfer procedures. Shri Matli Pavan Kumar, WTD continues as Chairman and 
ShriV.Kodanda Ram and Dr. Matli Sruthakeerthi continue as Members. The Committee inter-alia considers applications for 
transfer, transmission, split, consolidation of share certificates and cancellation of any share certificate in compliance with the 
provisions in this regard. As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, shares of the Company can be transferred 
only in dematerialized form with effect from, 1st April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposition of securities. The Committee is authorised to sign, seal or issue any new share certificate as a result of transfer, 
consolidation, splitting or in lieu of share certificates lost, defaced or destroyed. The Committee meets as and when there are 
matters to be considered by them. Share Transfer Committee met thrice on 01.10.24, 24.12.24 and 21.01.25 during the 
financial year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has advanced a loan of Rs.100.00 lakhs to M/s. Diadem Enterprises Pvt Ltd., Chennai at an interest rate of 10% 
p.a. This loan is repayable on demand. M/s. Diadem Enterprises Pvt. Ltd. is the manufacturer of multi colour labels for various 
products. Other than this, your Company has not given any loan, provided any guarantees or made any investments in any 
other company.

CHANGE OF REGD. OFFICE& CORPORATE OFFICE.

For Operational reasons, your company’s Regd. Office was shifted to No.34, Andal Nagar, Baluchetty Chatram, 
Kancheepuram Taluk, Kancheepuram Distt. Pin Code 631 551 w.e.f. 01st Oct., 2023. During the current year, Corporate office 
was also shifted to Wellington Plaza, No.90, Room No.16, Ground Floor, Anna Salai, Chennai – 600 002.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is fully aware of its corporate social responsibility. Your company is not presently involved in any manufacturing 
activity and is making very negligible profit. As it is involved in trading activities in a limited way right now, it has very limited 
employees. When it expands its operations, it will earmark a part of its revenue for social initiatives in and around the area of its 
operations.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company will have a risk management policy as and when it restarts its trading/manufacturing operations in a large scale. 
Company’s risk will be covered adequately by insurance policies in the long term.
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FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted or invited any fixed deposits including from the Public and, as such, no amount of principal or 
interest was outstanding as of Balance Sheet date.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the 32nd AGM held on 28th Sept., 2022 the Members approved appointment of M/s.K.GopalRao& Co, Chartered 
Accountants, Chennai (Firm Registration No.000956S with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India). Resolution to 
appoint them as Statutory Auditors for a term of five years from the conclusion of the 32nd Annual General Meeting until the 
conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting to be held in Sept., 2027. Resolution to approve their remuneration for the 
financial year 2025-26 forms part of this notice. 

The Audit Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (appointment of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr.T.Durga Prasad, Practising Company Secretary, 
Chennai, Membership No.6316 (Certificate of Practice No.154581) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025. The Secretarial Audit Report in the Prescribed Form No.MR–3 dated 21st August, 
2025 is annexed as Annexure 'C'. Mr.Durga Prasad has shown his unwillingness to continue as Secretarial Auditors for 2025-
26 and the Board of Directors has appointed ShriA.Kumar Reddy ICSI M.No.FCS-7162, C. P. No.7843 as Secretarial Auditors 
for the FY.2025-26. 

It was also decided to appoint Mr.A Kumar Reddy, Practising Company Secretary and Secretarial Auditor of the Company as 
Scrutinizer to conduct the E voting process in a fair and transparent manner for Company's forthcoming AGM.

OBSERVATIONS IN THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

1. Delay in filing forms 

Wherever there has been delay in filing forms with MCA, the same has been done by paying additional filing fee. 

2. Delayinfiling Compliance  with BSE

Observations on applicable clauses of Listing Agreement, Point No.ii (a) to (l) we wish to state that ASHIANA AGRO 
INDUSTRIES LTD is a small company within the meaning Reg.15(2) of SEBI LODR Rules, i.e., Paid up Equity Share 
Capital is less than rupees 10 crores and Net Worth is less than 25 crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. 
As on 31st March, 2025, the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of our company is Rs.458.60 lacs and Net Worth is Rs.257.32 
Lacs, therefore, compliance with corporate governance provisions as specified in Reg.17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 
25, 26, 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Rog.46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply to 
ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. There was slight delay in filing the exemption certificate with BSE Ltd. and in the 
meanwhile, BSE has issued non-compliance notices. We had replied to these notices and necessary Certificate under 
Reg.15(2) has been filed with BSE. While one Dept. waived off the penalty and expressed its regret for the inconvenience 
caused and another Dept. is yet to issue waiver letter with in BSE. We are following it up with BSE.

3. Re-Appointment of Independent Directors

As far as appointment of Independent Directors , viz., Mr. Kranthi Kumar Chimakurthi (DIN: 08194180) as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a  term of 4 years w.e.f 9th August 2024 and re-appointment of Mr.Vamsidhar 
Reddy Mandipati (DIN: 08268843) as an Independent Director of the Company for a  term of 4 years w.e.f. 8th November 
2024, we wish to clarify that both these Independent Directors were re-appointed in 2023 for a term of five years, but their 
appointment were done by Ordinary Resolution whereas appointments should have been done by Special Resolution.  
Since out of their total term of five years, one year has already elapsed and they were appointed by Special Resolution for 
the residual term of four years in the last AGM.

4. BSE Penalty

BSE has levied a penalty of Rs.5900/-for delayed filing of Related Party Transactions (RPT) which was paid 
on19.12.2024.

5. Secretarial Standards

The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable secretarial 
standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively.
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6.  Other Disclosures

(a) There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company as on the date of this Report.

(b) There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the 
financial year and the date of this Report.

(c) There was no application made or proceeding pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review.

The Secretarial Auditors'' Report is enclosed to the Board's report, which forms part of this Integrated Annual Report.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

IIn accordance with the Rules, Mr.G.Nandhivarman from Chennai has been appointed as Chief Finance Officer of the 
Company during the Financial Year 2014-15. He continues as Chief Financial Officer. Mr.Nandhivarman is experienced and 
adequately qualified to look after the financial affairs of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of fraud, error-reporting 
mechanisms, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and the Company's operations in future.

ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return in the prescribed format is available on Company’s website.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

POLICIES

Various policies adopted by the Company on  Dividend ,  Directors Appointment and Remuneration, Independent Director, 
Whistle blower, materiality of events etc. are  available on the website of the company.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

To comply with the Regulatory requirements, Mr.VijayaSujanakar, Management Consultants, having his office at VGN 
Dynasty, Flat No.E-216, Melpakkam, Chennai – 600077 was appointed an Internal Auditor of the Company from Financial 
Year 2017-18. Audit Committee has noted that Mr.A.VijayaSujanakar is a person with extensive experience in Accounting, 
Taxation and Internal Audit matters. He has agreed to continue as an Internal Auditor of the company for the financial year 
2025-26 also.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees whose particulars are to be furnished pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

There are no particulars which are required to be furnished pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 as the 
production activities of the Company remained suspended during the year under review. The company has neither earned nor 
utilized any foreign exchange during the year under review.

LISTING OF SHARES

The shares of the Company are listed with BSE Ltd., Mumbai. Jaipur Stock Exchange Ltd., Jaipur and Delhi Stock Exchange 
Assn.Ltd., Delhi have been derecognized by SEBI. Stock Exchange Regulations are complied with from time to time. Demat 
facilities are available with NSDL and CDSL. INE Number is INE709D01012 for CDSL and NSDL.

BSE FINES

BSE vide its mail dt.13.12.2024 imposed a fine of Rs.5000/- plus GST @ 18% totalling Rs.5900.00 as per SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 (Chapter-VII(A)-Penal Action for Non-Complianceof Regulation 23 
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(9) with respect to disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended 30th Sept., 2024. The 
fine has been paid through NEFT No.KKBKH24354938774 on 19.12.24 through Kotak Mahindra bank.

COMPULSORY DEMAT OF SHARES

As per SEBI/BSE directive no Shares of your company can be transferred in physical form. Therefore, Shareholders are 
requested to Demat their holdings without delay.

KYC UPDATION / INFORMATION

As per SEBI directive all shareholders may update with the company/Registrars their Aadhar Number, PAN Number and Bank 
Account Details.

REGISTRARS AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

M/s.MUFGIntime India Pvt.Ltd. (formerlyLinkIntime India Pvt. Ltd,)Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH 2, LSC, C-1 Block, 
Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi-110058, Phone: +91 11 49411000| Extn-7106, Fax: +91 11 4141 0591 continue to 
be Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. All Members are requested to contact them for any kind of share related 
matters.

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed report on Corporate Governance is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Report

PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

Your Company has no woman employee as of now as the company is on the lookout for new projects. The company will have 
adequate mechanism as laid down under the Rules for prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment of women as and 
when it employs women.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of the provision of Reg.34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015, the 
Management’s discussion and analysis is set out in this Annual Report and forms an integral part of this Report.

INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the relevant Provisions of the Companies’ Act, 2013, all unclaimed/unpaid dividends are required to be transferred 
by the company to IEPF established by the Govt. of India after the completion of seven years.  Since your company has not 
declared any dividends over the last 20 years, there are no funds to be transferred to the IEPF.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY THE AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditor nor the Secretarial Auditor has reported to the Audit Committee 
under section 143(12) of the Companies’ Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the Company by its Officers or 
Employees. 

VIGIL MECHANISM

The company has implemented Whistle Blower policy to enhance the vigil mechanism as envisaged in the Companies act, 
2013, and the Rules prescribed under the (SEBI LO &DR) Reg. 2015 with a view to enable the Directors, employees and all 
stake holders of the company to report their genuine concerns without fear of victimization and to have direct access to 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation 
of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit and Nomination & Remuneration respectively. A 
separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board of Directors 
and the Chairman of Nomination & Remuneration Committee met all the Directors to get an overview of the functioning of the 
Board and its constituents interalia on the following broad criteria i.e. attendance and level of participation, independence of 
judgment exercised by Independent Directors, interpersonal relationship, composition of the Board & committees, experience 
& competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, governance issues 
etc.

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the Board 
and its Committees.
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GREEN INITIATIVES

Electronic copies of Annual Report 2024-25 and the Notice of the 35th AGM are sent to all the Members whose email IDs are 
registered with the Company/Depository Participants. Pursuant to guidelines and regulations, Annual report is being to all 
shareholders in soft copy only. However, physical copies will be forwarded to all those shareholders who make a request for 
the same. Those who have not registered their email IDs, may please do so at the earliest. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no 
material departures; 

ii. They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

iii. They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls are 
adequate and operating effectively;

vi. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 
the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant 
board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls 
were adequate and effective during FY 2024-25.

Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(KRANTHI KUMAR CHIMAKURTHI)
Chairman
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ANNEXURE A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM AOC-1

The Company has no subsidiary company/joint venture company/associate company and therefore, no information is 
required to be provided in this section.

ANNEXURE B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The company is fully aware of its social responsibility and will discharge its social obligations as and when it achieves 
growth in its business activities in due course of time. Your company is not presently involved in any manufacturing 
activity and is making very negligible profit. As it is involved in trading activities in a limited way right now, it has very 
limited employees. When it expands its operations it will earmark a part of its revenue for social initiatives in and around 
the area of its operations.



ANNEXU

FORM No. MR

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members 
Ashiana Agro Industries Limited
No.34, Andal Nagar, Baluchetty Chatram,
Kancheepuram Taluk, Kancheepuram Dist-631551.

I had conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by M/S. ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN: L15142TN1990PLC076202) (hereinafter 
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED, books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on  31st March 2025,  complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by ASHIANA 
AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the 
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)   The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)   The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share TransferAgents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable during the audit period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; To the extent 
applicable

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India, (Share based Employee Benefits and sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021; (Not applicable during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable during the audit period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during 
the audit period)

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) (Amendment) Regulations, 2021; (Not 
applicable during the audit period)
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(j) The Securities and Exchange Board  of  India  (Substantial  Acquisition  of  Shares  and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable during the audit period)

I had also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i)   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India related to meetings and minutes.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited as per the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for 
listing of its Equity Shares;

The compliance by the Company of the applicable direct tax laws, indirect tax laws and other financial and labour laws 
have not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals.

We have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for the systems and mechanisms formed by 
the company for compliances under the other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations as mentioned by the company in 
its Management Representation letter.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above, except for:

a) Few forms were filed with delay to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

b) The Company has Delayed the Submission of Proceedings of Annual General Meeting 25.09.2024 by few hours as 
required under Reg 30 (6) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The Company has also received a mail from BSE 
dated 30.09.2024 regarding non-compliance and asked to provide Clarifications and an explanation for the said 
non-compliance. The Company had replied via letter dated 01.10.2024 and assured that no such delay will take 
place in future.

c) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated 14.11.2024 with respect to Non submission of Related Party 
Transactions in XBRL Mode under Regulation 23(9) for the Period ended September 30, 2024 . The Company has 
filed the Related Party Transaction Report on 14.11.2024 even though related Party transactions is not applicable 
to the Company.

d)  The Company has not disclosed the outcome of Board Meeting to the Stock Exchange within 30 minutes of the end 
of the meeting held on 13.11.2024 as required under Reg 30 (6) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The Company 
has also received a mail from BSE dated 22.11.2024 regarding non compliance and replied for the same and 
assured that no such delay will take place in future.

e) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated13.12.2024 with respect to non-compliance of Reg 23(9) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation, 2015 for the half year ended September 2024 and imposed penalty of Rs.5900/-. However, 
Company has complied and also paid the penalty and I’m of the opinion it is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated19.02.2025 with respect to Non-submission of Integrated Filing 
(Financial) for the quarter ended December 31, 2024. The Company has filed the Integrated filing 07.03.2025 and 
complied with the same.

g)  The Company had received a mail from BSE dated 03.03.2025 with respect to Non-submission of Corporate 
Governance Report and/or Statement of Investor Complaints and/or Integrated Filing (Governance) for the quarter 
ended December 31, 2024. The Company has filed the Integrated filing on 20.02.2025 However I’m of the opinion 
that Corporate Governance reporting is not applicable to the Company.

h) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated 24.06.2025 with respect to Non submission of Related Party 
Transactions in Integrated Filing (Financial) in XBRL Mode under Regulation 23(9) for the Period ended March 
31,2025. However, Company has complied and I’m of the opinion it is not applicable to the Company.

i) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated 14.07.2025 with reference to mail dated 26.06.205 and with 
respect to Reminder for freezing of promoter demat account under Reg 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
The Company has also replied to the mail dated 15.07.2025 stating that Reg 24A (Non-compliance with submission 
of secretarial compliance report) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to Company as the Paid-Up 
Equity Share Capital of Rs.458.60 lacs and Net Worth is Rs.257.32 lacs. The Company has also requested to waive 
off the Penalty Imposed.

j) The Company had received a mail from BSE dated 27.06.2025 with respect to penalty for non-compliance of Reg 
23(9) disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended 31st March 2025. The 
Company has also replied vide letter dated 21.07.2025 stating the same is not applicable to company for the 
financial year ended 31.03.2025 and also submitted non-applicability letter to stock exchange. However, the 
company has also received mail from BSE dated 07.07.2025 for with drawl of fine levied under Reg 23(9) of  SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015.
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k)  There are few lapses observed in complying Secretarial Standards.

I further report that the related documents that I had come across depict the following:

With respect to the Composition of the Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive / Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority / unanimous decision is carried through and are captured and recorded as part of all the Board / Committee / 
General minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company had no events which had major bearing on the Company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulation and guidelines.

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Kranthi Kumar Chimakurthi (DIN: 08194180) as an Independent Director of the Company 
for a further term of 4 years w.e.f  9th August 2024.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati (DIN: 08268843), as an Independent Director of the Company 
for a further term of 4 years w.e.f. 8th November 2024.

Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

For 
Sd/-

FCS No.:6316,
C P No.: 15458

PR No: 2481/2022
UDIN: F006316G001047941

T. Durga Prasad
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Annexure - A
To, 
The Members of Ashiana Agro Industries Limited
Regd. Office:No.34, Andal Nagar, BaluchettyChatram,
Kancheepuram Taluk, Kancheepuram Dist-631551.

Our Secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records and compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards are the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these Secretarial records and Compliance based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The Verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc;

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, Regulations, Standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our Examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

For 
Sd/-

FCS No.:6316,
C P No.: 15458

PR No: 2481/2022
UDIN: F006316G001047941

T. Durga Prasad



ISIN Number INE709D01012 for CDSL and NSDL

ANNEXUE D TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

 (Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014

 I) REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN   : L15142TN1990PLC076202

ii) Registration Date  : 18/06/1990

iii) Name of the Company : ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Manufacturing/Trading Company.

v) Address of the Registered Office and : No.34, Andal Nagar, Baluchetty Chatram,
contact details KancheepuramTaluk, Kancheepuram Dist.

Pin Code 631 551, Tamil Nadu,
Phones: 044-28344820
Email : ashianaagro@gmail.com / ashiana.menon@gmail.com

vi) Whether listed Company : Yes - Listed at BSE, Delhi and Jaipur Stock Exchanges

vii) Name, address and contact details of : M/s.MUFG Intime India Pvt.Ltd.
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Noble Heights,1st floor, Plot No.NH-2, LSC, C-1 Block,

Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi 110058
Phone:011-49411000, Fax:01141410591.
Email::delhi@in.mpms.mufg.com

 II) PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl No. Name and  description of NIC code of the % to total turnover
Main products/services product/service of the company

1. Trading - 80%

2. Financing activities - 20%

III) PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Ashiana Agro Industries Ltd. is neither a holding company nor a subsidiary company of any other company.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i)  Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2024] [As on 31-March-2025]

Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corporate 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 -

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

f) Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub – total (A) (1): 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 -

% Change
during

the year  
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Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2024] [As on 31-March-2025]

Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Shares

(2) Foreign

Sub – total(A) (2):- - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 1175680 - 1175680 25.56 -
of  Promoter
(A) = (A1)+(A2)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / FI 600 100 700 0.0152 600 100 700 0.0152 -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -

h) Foreign Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- 600 100 700 0.0152 600 100 700 0.0152 -

2. Non-Institutions

a) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 632969 2546420 3179389 69.1172 628158 2527020 3155178 68.5908 (0.5264)
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders 72803 33200 106003 2.3044 92803 33200 126003 2.7392 0.4348
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of 
Rs.1 lakh

B) Others (specify)

HUF 4715 - 4715 0.1025 7127 - 7127 0.1549 0.0524

Trusts - 200 200 0.0043 - 200 200 0.0043 -

NRI 400 - 400 0.0087 600 - 600 0.013 0.0043

Overseas - 10000 10000 0.2174 - 10000 10000 0.2174 -

   Clearing Member - - - - - - - - -

   Bodies Corporate 47913 75000 122913 2.6720 49366 75000 124366 2.7036 0.0316

Sub Total (B)(2) 758800 2664820 3423620 74.4265 778200 2645420 3423620 74.4265 -

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 759400 2664920 3424320 74.4417 778800 2645520 3424320 74.4417 -

C. Non Promoter-Non  - - - - - - - - -
Public Custodian /DR 
Holder Shares Held 
By Employee Trust

Grand Total (A+B+C) 1935080 2664920 4600000 100.00 1954480 2645520 4600000 100.00 -

% Change
during

the year  
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sl. Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the 
No. beginning of the year end of the year

No. of %of total % of Shares No. of %of total % of Shares
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares Shares of Pledged / 

the encumbered the encumbered
company to total shares company to total shares

1 Serengeti Holdings Pvt.Ltd. 1175680 25.56 Nil 1175680 25.56 Nil Nil

% change in 
shareholding 

during 
the year

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding  : There has been no change in Promoters’ Shareholding since the date of 
take over of the Company in 2008

 (iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs. And 
ADRs)
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Name of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders [As on 31-March-2024] [As on 31-March-2025]

Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Shares

1.  Alto Enterprises Pvt Ltd 43100 42800 85900 1.8674 43100 42800 85900 1.8674 -

2. Anand Mohan - - - - 20000 - 20000 0.4348 0.4348

3. Shiv Bhagwan Gupta 17500 - 17500 0.3804 17500 - 17500 0.3804 -

4. Ajay Gupta 15175 - 15175 0.3299 15175 - 15175 0.3299 -

5. Giridharlal Seksaria 15100 - 15100 0.3283 15100 - 15100 0.3283 -

6. Pratyakash Mittal 12520 - 12520 0.2722 12520 - 12520 0.2722 -

7. Om Prakash Mishra 12508 - 12508 0.2719 12508 - 12508 0.2719 -

8. Vinod Kumar - 11800 11800 0.2565 - 11800 11800 0.2565 -

9. Mridular Kumar - 10700 10700 0.2326 10700 10700 0.2326 -

10.Rishi Kumar - 10700 10700 0.2326 10700 10700 0.2326 -

11.Sanjana Gupta - 10000 10000 0.2174 10000 10000 0.2174 -

12.Sukaran - 10000 10000 0.2174 10000 10000 0.2174 -
Investments Ltd

% Change
during

the year  

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Only Shri.E.D.M.Menon, Company Secretary of the Company holds 100 equity shares of the Company since 1992. 
There has been no change in his holdings since 1992. None of the other directors or key managerial personnel of 
the company holds any shares in the Company.

V. INDEBTEDNESS :  The Company has no indebtedness.
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Mr Pavan Kumar Matli (WTD)

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 6,60,000  6,60,000
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option Nil Nil

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil

4 Commission Nil Nil

-  as % of profit

-  others, specify…

5 Others, please specify

Total (A) 6,60,000  6,60,000

Ceiling as per the Act NA NA

B. Remuneration to other directors.

     None of the other directors receive any remuneration from the Company in any form.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO CS CFO Total

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 3,60,000 - 3,60,000
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission

-  as % of profit - - - -

others, specify… - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -

Total - 3,60,000 - 3,60,000



VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES;

The Company, its Directors and none of its Officers were subject to any Penalties/Punishment/Compounding of 
Offences under any Act except the following:

BSE vide its mail dt.13.12.2024 imposed a fine of Rs.5000/- plus GST @ 18% totalling Rs.5900.00 as per SEBI 
circular no.SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 (Chapter-VII(A)-Penal Action for Non-
Complianceof Regulation 23 (9) with respect to disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis for 
the half year ended 30th Sept., 2024. The fine has been paid through NEFT No.KKBKH24354938774 on 19.12.24 
through Kotak Mahindra bank.

Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(KRANTHI KUMAR CHIMAKURTHI)
Chairman

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(KRANTHI KUMAR CHIMAKURTHI)
Chairman

ANNEXURE E TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
[Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014]

Director/Secretary Ratio Percentage increase

Pavan Kumar Matli 11:1 Nil                               

EDM Menon 6:1 Nil
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance emphasizes the principle of self-governance. Our corporate governance practices are a 
reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, policies and relationships with our shareholders.  Integrity and 
transparency are key to our corporate governance practices to ensure that we gain and retain the trust of our 
shareholders at all times. Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and 
sustainably. We have been following the spirit of corporate governance since the date of incorporation of the Company, 
but as per the guidelines of SEBI, we have implemented the same as per clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The theme of Corporate governance is based on the principle of working in a disciplined manner at the time of decision, 
law of natural justice must prevail and to work in the best interest of all constituents, i.e., shareholders, customers, 
financial institution/banks, employees and all others.

The Board of Directors consists of following directors:-

Whole Time Director : Shri Pavan Kumar Matli

Non-Executive Directors : Shri Vangallu Kodanda Ram

Shri Kranthikumar Chimakurthi, Chairman

Dr. Matli Srutha Keerthi

Shri Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati

Composition, attendance at the Board meeting and the last Annual General Meeting, outside Directorships and 
other Board Committees:

Director No. of Board Attendance No. of outside No. of Member- Executive/Non
Meetings at previous directorships ship/Chairman- executive/
Attended AGM on 25.09.24 held ship in committee Independent

1. Shri Pavan Kumar Matli 6 Present 10 3 Executive

2.Shri Vangallu Kodandaram 6 - 12 3 Non-executive

3.Dr.Matli Srutha Keerthi 6 Present  - 1 Non-executive

4. Shri Kranthi Kumar 6 Present - 2 Non-executive &
    Chimakurthi  Independent

5.Shri Vamsidhar Reddy 6 Present - 3 Non-executive &
    Mandipati  Independent

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

During the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025, Board Meetings held on 23.04.24, 24.05.24, 14.08.24, 22.08.24, 13.11.24 
and 13.02.25 and Independent Directors held a separate meeting on 31stMarch, 2025to review the operations, 
evaluate other directors and assess the flow of information to shareholders and regulatory compliances. The maximum 
interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Companies act.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Shri.Kranti Kumar Chimakurthi, an Independent Director continues as Chairman and Shri.Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati, 
another Independent Director and Mr.Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole time Director continues as Members. Audit Committee 
met six times during the Financial Year on 23.04.24, 24.05.24, 14.08.24, 22.08.24, 13.11.24 and 13.02.25 Shri E D 
M.Menon, Company Secretary is Secretary to the Committee.

The role and duties of the audit committee have been defined by the Board of directors and generally cover the areas 
mentioned under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement besides other terms as may be referred to the Committee by the 
Board of Directors from time to time.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Shri. Vangallu Kodanda Ram, Director continues as Chairman and ShriVamsidhar Reddy Mandipati, Independent 
Director and Shri. Matli Pavan Kumar, WTD continues as Members. Stakeholders Grievances Committee met four 
times during the Financial Year on 10.04.24, 10.07.24, 09.10.24 and 09.01.25.

Shri EDM Menon, Company Secretary is the compliance officer. The Company has attended to all valid requests for 
transfer received during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and no such transfer is pending
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Shri.Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati, Independent Director continues as Chairman and Shri. Krantikumar Chimakurthi and 
Shri.VangalluKodanda Ram continue as Members. The Committee met twice during the Financial Year on 24.05.24 and 
22.08.24 to review the remuneration of Directors, Executives and others.

SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

The Share Transfer Committee has been formed to look into share transfer and related applications received from 
Shareholders, with a view to accelerate the transfer procedures.Shri. Matli Pavan Kumar, WTD continues as Chairman 
and Shri.V.Kodanda Ram and Dr. Matli Sruthakeerthi continue as Members. The Committee inter-alia considers 
applications for transfer, transmission, split, consolidation of share certificates and cancellation of any share certificate 
in compliance with the provisions in this regard. As per Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, as amended, shares of the 
Company can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, 1st April, 2019, except in case of request 
received for transmission or transposition of securities. The Committee is authorised to sign, seal or issue any new 
share certificate as a result of transfer, consolidation, splitting or in lieu of share certificates lost, defaced or destroyed. 
The Committee meets as and when there are matters to be considered by them. The Share Transfer committee met 
thrice during the financial year on 01.10.24, 24.12.24 and 21.01.25.

CHANGE OF REGD. OFFICE

Your Company’s Registered Office is situated at No.34,Andal Nagar, Baluchetty Chatram, Kancheepuram Taluk, 
Kancheepuram Distt. Pin Code 631 551. This change of Regd. Office is effective from 1st Oct., 2023. During the current  
year, Corporate office was also shifted to Wellington Plaza, No.90, Room No.16, Ground Floor,  Anna Salai, Chennai – 
600 002.

Remuneration of Director for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025

Name of Director Remuneration(Amt.Rs.)

Shri Pavan Kumar Matli 6,60,000

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Year Kind of Meeting Venue Date Time

2023      Annual General Meeting Through Video Conf./Other Audio Visual 
Means – Deemed Venue:

Easwari Hotel Complex, Bangalore 27.9.2023 11.00AM
High  Road, Sungurvarchatram,
Sriperumbudur Taluk, Distt. Kancheepuram
Tamil Nadu, Pin: 602106

2024      Annual General Meeting Through Video Conf./Other Audio Visual 
Means – Deemed Venue:

Easwari Hotel Complex, Bangalore 25.9.2024 11.00AM
High  Road, Sungurvarchatram,
Sriperumbudur Taluk, Distt. Kancheepuram
Tamil Nadu, Pin: 602106

2025      Annual General Meeting Through Video Conf./Other Audio Visual 
Means – Deemed Venue:

Easwari Hotel Complex, Bangalore 25.9.2025 11.00AM
High  Road, Sungurvarchatram,
Sriperumbudur Taluk, Distt. Kancheepuram
Tamil Nadu, Pin: 602106

DISCLOSURES

The related party transactions have been disclosed in Notes on Accounts forming part of the Account for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2025 and since the necessary disclosures were made in respect of said transactions to the 
Board of Directors, no transaction is considered to be in potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

BSE vide its mail dt.13.12.2024 imposed a fine of Rs.5000/- plus GST @ 18% totalling Rs.5900.00 as per SEBI circular 
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 (Chapter-VII(A)-Penal Action for Non-Complianceof 
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Regulation 23 (9) with respect to disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended 
30th Sept., 2024.  The fine has been paid through NEFT No.KKBKH24354938774 on 19.12.24 through Kotak 
Mahindra bank.

OBSERVATIONS IN THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

In the Secretarial Audit Report dt.21.08.2025, ShriT.Durga Prasad, Practicing Company Secretary, secretarial auditor 
of our Company has made certain observations and our reply to is as under:

1. Delayinfilingforms with MCA

Whereverthere has been delay in filing forms with MCA, the same has been done by paying additional filing fee. 

2. Delayinfiling Compliance  with BSE

Observations on applicable clauses of Listing Agreement, Point No.ii (a) to (l) we wish to state that ASHIANA AGRO 
INDUSTRIES LTD is a small company within the meaning Reg.15(2) of SEBI LODR Rules, i.e., Paid up Equity 
Share Capital is less than rupees 10 crores and Net Worth is less than 25 crores as on the last day of the previous 
financial year. As on 31st March, 2025, the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of our company is Rs.458.60 lacs and Net 
Worth is Rs.257.32 Lacs, therefore, compliance with corporate governance provisions as specified in Reg.17, 18, 
19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Rog.46 and para C, D and E of 
Schedule V shall not apply to ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. There was slight delay in filing the exemption 
certificate with BSE Ltd. and in the meanwhile, BSE has issued non-compliance notices. We had replied to these 
notices and necessary  Certificate under Reg.15(2) has been filed with BSE. While one Dept. waived off the penalty 
and expressed its regret for the inconvenience caused and another Dept. is yet to issue waiver letter with in BSE. We 
are following it up with BSE.

3. Re-Appointment of Independent Directors

As far as appointment of Independent Directors , viz., Mr. Kranthi Kumar Chimakurthi (DIN: 08194180) as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a  term of 4 years w.e.f 9th August 2024 and re-appointment of 
Mr.Vamsidhar Reddy Mandipati (DIN: 08268843) as an Independent Director of the Company for a  term of 4 years 
w.e.f. 8th November 2024, we wish to clarify that both these Independent Directors were re-appointed in 2023 for a 
term of five years, but their appointment were done by Ordinary Resolution whereas appointments should have 
been done by Special Resolution.  Since out of their total term of five years, one year has already elapsed and they 
were appointed by Special Resolution for the residual term of four years in the last AGM.

4. BSE Penalty

BSE has levied a penalty of Rs.5900/- for delayed filing of Related Party Transactions (RPT) which was paid on 
19.12.2024.

Other than the above, there has not been any other non-compliance, penalties or strictures imposed on the 
company by the stock exchange(s), SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matters relating to the capital 
markets during the last three years. The Company will formulate Whistle Blower policy and Risk Management Policy 
as and when the Company restarts its full commercial operations.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Audited/Unaudited Financial Results and other Public Notices are generally published by the Company in The 
Statesman, New Delhi,Free Press Journal and Navasakthi, Mumbai and MakkalKural, Chennai (Tamil Language). 
These Results/Notices are filing online with BSE Ltd. These also uploaded to the Company’s website. All Shareholder 
information sent to the stock exchanges and published in Newspapers are available on the Company’s website  
“www.aail.in”.
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Place:  Chennai
Date: 21st May, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar M

Whole Time Director 

Sd/-
G. Nandhivarman

Chief Financial Officer

ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

Shri.Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole Time Director, and Shri.G.Nandhivarman, CFO have furnished the following certificate 
to the Board of Directors under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

We, Pavan Kumar Matli, Whole Time Director and G.Nandhivarman, Chief Financial Officer certify that:

 a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and to 
the best of our knowledge and belief :

 i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with 
existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st 
March, 2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. 
Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed 
to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year under 
reference;

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the 
notes to the financial statements; and

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of the 
management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial 
reporting.

General Share Holders Information

a) Annual General Meeting

Date and Time  : 25th September, 2025 at 11.00 AM

Venue : Through Video conferencing.  

Deemed venue: Regd. Office of the Company

b) Financial Calender (tentative)

Results for the Quarter ending 30.06.25 :   Second week of August 2025

Results for the Quarter ending 30.09.25 :   Second week of Nov., 2025

Results for the Quarter ending 31.12.25 :   Second week of Feb., 2026

Results for the Quarter ending 31.03.26 :   Last week of May, 2026

c) Book Closure date : From 19th to 20th Sept., 2025

d) Record/Cut off date   :   18th September, 2025

e) Listing of Equity shares : BSE Ltd., Jaipur and Delhi

Scrip code at BSE : 519174
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e) Stock Market Data: Monthly low and high prices of company's equity shares of Rs.10.00 each (fully paid up) at BSE 
Ltd., Mumbai during April 2024 to March 2025 are as under:-

 (Prices in Rupees)

Month Open  High Low Close No. of No. of Total
Price Price Price Price Shares Trades Turnover

April.,24 9.90 11.02 9.30 9.71 17630 224 180038

May,24 9.71 11.78       9.57 11.14 29726 430 315780

June,24 11.20 20.58 9.61 20.58 108291 702 1549557

July,24 21.60 25.00 17.43 17.43 83697 433 1931843

Aug.,24 17.09 17.09 11.49 14.47 75095 460 1082413

Sept.,24 14.19 14.19 11.53 11.53 13846 167 1767294

Oct.,24 11.76 17.15 11.75 14.23 30953 226 469468

Nov.,24 14.23 14.37 12.74 13.01 16053 146 217092

Dec.,24 13.33 15.28 12.52 13.64 25064 350 343127

Jan.,25 13.54 13.84 11.00 11.00 15394 244 189209

Feb.,25 11.00 11.00 8.23 9.09 10308 141 102021

Mar.,25 9.99 11.59 8.40 10.18 10037 94 100670

f) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents :M/s.MUFGIntime India Pvt.Ltd.
  Noble Heights,1st floor, Plot No.NH-2, LSC, C-1 Block,
  Near Savitri Market, Janakpuri, New Delhi 110058

COMPULSORY DMATTING OF SHARES

As per SEBI/BSE directive no Shares of your company can be transferred in physical form after 31st Mar., 2019. 
Therefore Shareholders are requested to DEMAT their holdings without delay.

KYC UPDATION / INFORMATION

As per SEBI directive all shareholders may update with the company/Registrars their Aadhar Number, PAN Number and 
Bank Account Details.

(i)  Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2025

Shareholding Shareholders Share Amount

              ̀ Numbers % to total Amount in Rs. % to total

1 – 500 22879 98.1215 2629064 57.1536

501 – 1000 275 1.1794 219025 4.7614

1001 – 2000 103 0.4417 153034 3.3268

2001 – 3000 24 0.1029 59687 1.2975

3001– 4000 11 0.0472 38281 0.8322

4001– 5000 4 0.0172 17619 0.3830

5001– 10000 8 0.0343 73207 1.5915

10001 &Above 13 0.0558 1410083 30.6540

Total 23317 100 4600000 100



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Company is a zero liability company. M/s Serengeti Holdings Pvt.Ltd., Chennai have taken over your company 
duly complying with the SEBI (SAST) Regulations, 1997. They hold 11,75,680 equity shares constituting 25.56% of the 
Equity Capital of the Company.

The Board of Directors constitutes very able and accomplished persons. Shri Vangallu Kodanda Ram (DIN: 06967765) 
continues as Promoter’s, viz., Serengeti Holdings Pvt. Ltd., nominee director. He is alumnus of Loyola Institute of 
Business Admin., Chennai, is a double Post Graduate from Central Michigan University, Mt pleasant USA in Master of 
Science in Administration and Kingston College, Burnaby, Canada in information resource management. Shri.Pavan 
Kumar Matli another promoter nominee and Managing Director is a Mechanical Engineer. Shri.Vamsidhar Reddy 
Mandipati Independent Director is a MCA. Shri. Kranthikumar Chimakurthi, another Independent Director and 
Chairmanis an M.Tech with more than six years experience in MIS and Data base management. He is a senior 
consultant in SQL server. With such highly qualified and able professionals at the Board level, we are very optimistic 
about the future of the Company. Shri.Pavan Kumar Matli has been re-appointed as Managing Director for a period of 
another five years w.e.f.01.07.2025 in the Board meeting held on 13th August, 2025 subject to approval of shareholders 
in the forthcoming AGM. The Board is making all out efforts to revive the company and they are optimistic about the 
future.

Your company has entered into Trading of Packaging Materials business and the shareholders’ approval was taken for 
altering the Objects clause of the Memorandum of Association. The new management has expertise and experience in 
such business activities. The Company has already started trading of packaging materials and looking to expand the 
business in current year.

Place:  Chennai
Date:  21st August, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors
Sd/-

(KRANTHI KUMAR CHIMAKURTHI)
Chairman

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Ashiana  Agro Industries Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by AshianaAgro Industries Limited, for 
the year ended March 31, 2025, as stipulated under the relevant provision of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 for 
the period April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025, with the relevant records and documents maintained by the company 
and furnished to us and the report on corporate governance as approved by the board of directors.

2 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

3 Based on the aforesaid examination and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015.

4 We further state that, such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date:  22nd May, 2025
Place: Chennai

K GOPAL RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI FRN: 000956S
         Sd/-
CA GOPAL KRISHNA RAJU
M No.205929
UDIN:25205929BMLDMK3173
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Ashiana Agro Industries Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement of M/s. Ashiana Agro Industries Limited which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone 
Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2025, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Auditing Standards (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there was no significance matter to be 
communicated in our report as key audit matters.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, including total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the Provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; Selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure A". Our report express an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting..
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The company does not have any long-term contracts requiring a provision for material foreseeable losses.

iii. The company does not have any amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advance or loaned or invested (either from borrowed fund or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds)  by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)  by or on behalf of the company or 

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) The management has represented, that. To the best of his knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall:

- directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

- Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstance nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) 
and (iv)(b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared/paid dividends during the year and hence the provisions of section 123 of 
the Act are not applicable.
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Annexure-A to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Ashiana Agro Industries Limited ("the 
Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

ANNEXURE(B) REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO 
THE MEMBERS OF M/S. ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025.

In terms of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020, issued by the Central Government of India, in terms of section 
143(11) of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report, on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said Order, 
that :

i. In respect of the company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant& equipment and company does not hold any intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of physical verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment in a 
phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the information and explanation given to us no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not own any immovable 
properties and hence the examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
are not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both 
during the year.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the record of 
the company, there are no proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. The Company is in the business of trading and does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any investment and has 
granted unsecured loan to companies in respect of which:

a) The company has granted unsecured loan to other entity, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) of the 
order is applicable and the aggregate amount during the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet 
date with respect to such unsecured loan is Rs.1,00,00,000/-

b) In our opinion, the Loan granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the company's interest.

c) There is no specific repayment schedule for repayment of principal and the rate of interest on such loan is 10% 
per annum. The repayment of interest is regular.

Date:  22nd May, 2025
Place: Chennai

K GOPAL RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI FRN: 000956S
         Sd/-
CA GOPAL KRISHNA RAJU
M No.205929
UDIN:25205929BMLDMK3173
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d) There is no overdue of interest for more than 90 days during the year.

e) The existing loan granted in earlier year is continuing. No fresh loans are sanction during the year.

f) The principal is required to be paid on demand and interest to be paid on monthly basis for existing loan of 
Rs.1,00,00,000/-granted to company.

Particulars All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Parties Aggregate amount 
of loans/ advances in nature of loans - - -

(A) Repayable on demand Rs, 1,00,00,000 - -

(B) Agreement does not specify any 
terms or period of repayment - - -

Total (A+B) Rs, 1,00,00,000 - -

Percentage of loans/ advances in 
nature of loans to the total loans 100% - -

iv. The Company has not given any loans or guarantees/made any investments within the meaning of sections 185 & 
186 of The Companies Act, 2013.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act,2013, during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 
2025 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause 3(vi) of 
the order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, Including Good and 
Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and any other 
material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears as at 
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except the following 
outstanding dues:

Statute : Income tax Act, 1961

Nature of the Dues : Fee u/s 234E(Late filing of TDS returns)

Period to which the Amount
amount relates Due (Rs.)

2007-2008 90

2008-2009 370

2012-2013 40,460

2013-2014 800

2014-2015 110

2015-2016 150

Total 41,980

c) There is no dues in respect of Income tax, Goods and Service tax (GST), sales-tax, service-tax, duty of 
customs, and duty of excise or value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the 
company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the assessment under the Income tax Act,1961 as income during the year.
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ix. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly the 
provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) to 3(ix)(f)  are not applicable to the company.

x. According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the 
company, the company has not raised or obtained any loan from any bank or financial institution or government or 
government authority. Thus reporting clause 3(ix) (a) to (f) is not applicable.

a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) or term loan and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
company.

b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/debentures during the 
year. Thus, reporting under clause 3(x) (b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us considering the principle of materiality outlined in standard on auditing, we report that 
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of 
the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules,2014 with Central Government.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with 
Section 177 and Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a) Based on information and explanation provided to us and our audit procedure, in our opinion the company has 
an internal audit system commensurate with size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the ReserveBank of India Act, 19 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 193 
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not 
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 (xviii) of the order is 
not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exist as on the date of the audit report that company is not cable 
of meetings its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. 



We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee or any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-
section (5) of the section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. According, clause (xx) (a) and 
3(xx) (b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any 
subsidiary companies. The reporting clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

Date:  22nd May, 2025
Place: Chennai

K GOPAL RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI FRN: 000956S
         Sd/-
CA GOPAL KRISHNA RAJU
M No.205929
UDIN:25205929BMLDMK3173
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025
(Pursuant to the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange)

Particluars Current Year

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Taxation & Extraordinary Items 1,136.52 1,293.03

Adjustment For:

Depreciation - -

Provision for tax - (50.00)

Interest Received (1,939.92) (1,884.23)

(803.40) (641.20)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/Decrease Current Assets 626.75 (1,794.69)

Increase/(Decrease) Current Liabilities (176.66) 124.55

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (353.31) (2,311.34)

Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refunded (142.01) (50.00)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (495.32) (2,261.34)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loans and Advances 5,000.00 -

Interest Received 1,939.92 1,884.23

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 6,939.92 1,884.23

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issuance of Share Capital -   -

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - Interest - -   

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings - Principal - -

Interest Paid -  -

Dividend Paid -  - 

NET USED FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 6444.60 (377.11)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD  6,351.04 6,728.15

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD  12,795.64 6,351.04

Previous Year

ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

46

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
V Kodanda Ram

Director

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar M

Whole Time Director 

Sd/-
EDM Menon 

Company Secretary 

Sd/-
G. Nandhivarman

Chief Financial Officer

(Rs. in ‘000)

As per our report of event date annexed 
 
K GOPAL RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI FRN: 000956S
         Sd/-

CA GOPAL KRISHNA RAJU
M No.205929
UDIN:25205929BMLDMK3173

Date:   22nd May, 2025
Place:  Chennai



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

                                                   Note Year Ended 
No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

I ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 - -

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Loans 2 10,000.00 15,000.00

 Total Non-Current Assets    10,000.00 15,000.00

(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories - -

(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables 3 3,020.79 3,917.80

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 4 12,795.64 6,351.04

(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) 5 - -

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 291.69 197.38

(d) Other current assets 7 160.14 181.57

Total Current Assets 16,268.26 10,647.79

Total Assets 26,268.26 25,647.79

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) EQUITY

(a) Equity Share capital 8 45,859.50 45,859.50

(b) Other Equity 8 (20,127.37) (20,688.46)

Total Equity 25,732.13 25,171.04

(2) LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities - -

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Trade payables 9

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 190.76 358.90

(b) Total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and - -
      small enterprises

(b) Other current liabilities 10 9.33 17.85

(c) Provisions 11 336.04 100.00

Total Liabilities 536.13 476.75

Total Equity and Liabilities 26,268.26 25,647.79

See accompanying notes to the financial statements    17 to 27

Particluars Year Ended 
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(Rs. in ‘000)

As per our report of event date annexed 
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Sd/-
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Sd/-
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Sd/-
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Sd/-
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

                                  

I Revenue From Operations 12 7,696.39 9,696.21

II Other Income 13 1,939.92 1,884.23

III Total Income (I+II) 9,636.31 11,580.44

IV EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 14 6,492.97 8,262.00

Employee benefits expense 15 1,080.00 1,080.00

Depreciation and amortization expense 1 - -

Other expenses 16 926.82 945.41

Total expenses (IV)             8,499.79 10,287.41

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-IV) 1,136.52 1,293.03

VI Exceptional Items - -

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)        1,136.52 1,293.03

VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax                      286.04 50.00

(2) Deferred tax                                 - -

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII)          850.48 1,243.03

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations                           -                                -

XI Tax expense of discontinued operations                             -                  -

XII Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI)                             -                       -

XIII Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)             850.48 1,243.03

XIV Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                                  -           -

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                               -                -

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising 
Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period)            850.48 1,243.03

XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic              0.18 0.27

(2) Diluted            0.18 0.27

XVII Earnings per equity share (for discontinuing operation):

(1) Basic                                - -

(2) Diluted                               - -

XVIII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations)

(1) Basic           0.18 0.27

(2) Diluted                0.18 0.27

See accompanying notes to the financial statements                            17 to 27

    Particluars Note Year Ended Year Ended 
No. 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
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Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025

1. Property, Plant and Equipment

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Balance Additions Deduction Balance Balance During Deduction Balance WDV WDV
as at during the during the as at as at the during the as at as on as on

01.04.2024 year year 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 year year 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

A) Tangible Assets

Fax Machine 13.50 - - 13.50 13.50 - - 13.50 - -

TOTAL 13.50 - - 13.50 13.50 - - 13.50 - -

Previous year 13.50 - - 13.50 13.50 - - 13.50 - -
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Particulars As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
` in ‘000

2. Loans

Unsecured, considered good

a) Secured Deposit                           -                            -

b) Other Loans          10,000.00 15,000.00

Total        10,000.00 15,000.00

3. Trade Receivables

i) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months

Unsecured-considered good - -

Unsecured-Doubtful - -

Others

Unsecured, considered good     3,020.79 3,917.80

Doubtful - -

Total    3,020.79 3,917.80

` in ‘000

` in ‘000
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Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023
` in ‘000

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand         26.67 18.58

Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts (156.03) 107.46

In Deposit Accounts (Having maturity less than 3 months as at year end)

Total                 12,795.64 6,351.04

5.  Bank Balances other than cash equivalents

Balance in Deposit accounts - -

Total           - -

6. Current tax assets (net)

TDS Receivable        201.69 197.38

Less: Provision for Tax (Current Year) 90.00 -

Total    291.69 197.38

7. Other current assets

Rental Advance 5.00 5.00

Interest Accrued on Deposits 147.68 129.79

Excess ITC Carry forward 7.45 46.78

Total       160.13 181.57

` in ‘000

12,925.00 6,225.00
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8  Statement of changes in equity 

a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars  As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

Number of shares Amount (Rs. in ’000) Number of shares Amount (Rs. in ’000)

Authorised

Equity shares of  Rs.10 each with voting rights  49,00,000 49,000.00 49,00,000 49,000.00

Preference shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,000 1,000.00 1,00,000 1,000.00

Total 50,00,000 50,000.00 50,00,000 50,000.00

Issued Share Capital

Equity shares of  Rs.10 each with voting rights 46,00,000 46,000.00 46,00,000 46,000.00

Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 45,71,900 45,719.00 45,71,900 45,719.00

Subscribed and not fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs.10 each, partly paid up 
at Rs.5 per share. Fully called up shares 28,100 140.50 28,100 140.50

Total 46,00,000 45,859.50 46,00,000 45,859.50

Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025
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8. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A). Equity Share Capital

B). Other Equity



Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025

1.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting 
period:

  Particulars Opening Balance Shares Issued 
during the year back during the year  Balance

Equity shares with voting rights
Year ended 31 March, 2025

Number of shares 46,00,000 Nil Nil 46,00,000

Amount (Rs. in ‘000) 45,859.50 Nil Nil 45,859.50

Year ended 31 March, 2024

Number of shares 46,00,000 Nil Nil 46,00,000

Amount (Rs.in ‘000) 45,859.50 Nil Nil 45,859.50

1.2 The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of 
dividends and the repayment of capital

The company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share and one class of preference shares(not yet 
issued & subscribed). Each holder of the equity share is entitled to vote. The dividend, if any, proposed by the board is subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in ensuring Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.

1.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Equity Shares with voting rights  As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024

Number of shares % holding in that Number of shares % holding in that

Held class of shares Held class of shares

Serengeti Holdings Pvt Ltd 11,75,680 25.56% 11,75,680 25.56%

As per record of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received fromshareholders 
regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Shares bought  Closing
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Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
` in ‘000 ` in ‘000

(b) Other Equity

(a) Securities premium account

Opening balance                      -                        -

(+) Shares issued at premium during the year                      -                        -

- -

(b) General reserve

Opening balance          1,500.00         1,500.00

(+) Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss                      -                        -

Closing balance        1,500.00       1,500.00

(c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance  (22,188.46)  (23,431.49)

(+) Profit / (Loss) for the year 850.48 1,243.03

(-) TDS Receivables Adjusted against Profit & Loss A/c (289.39) -

Closing balance (21,627.37) (22,188.46)

Total (20,127.37) (20,688.46)

9. Trade payables

Sundry Creditors 190.76 358.90

Total    190.76 358.90
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Note Forming Part of the Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars As at 31 March, 2025 As at 31 March, 2024
` in ‘000 ` in ‘000

10. Other Current Liabilities

Expenses Payable - -

Professional Charges payable 8.00 16.00

TDS Payable 1.33 1.85

Total 9.33 17.85

11. Provisions

Audit Fees Payable 50.00 50.00

Provision for income Tax 286.04 50.00

Total 336.04 100.00

12. Revenue from operations

Sale - Corrugated Boxes (Net of GST) 6,747.44 8,602.62

Sale –Corrugated Boards (Net of GST) 948.95 1,093.59

Total 7,696.39 9,696.21

13. Other income

Interest from Diadem Enterprises (Includes TDS Rs.125.00/-) 1,250.00 1,500.00

Interest from Bank Deposits 689.92 376.83

Interest on Income Tax Refund - 7.40

Total 1,939.92 1,884.23

14. Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Purchase-Box 5,708.89 7,348.06

Purchase-Boards 784.08 913.94

Total 6,492.97 8,262.00

15. Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 420.00 420.00

Directors Remuneration 660.00 660.00

Total 1,080.00 1,080.00

16. Other Expenses

Advertisement 188.99 205.08

Audit Fee (Statutory Audit) 50.00 41.00

Bank Charges - 0.84

Internal Audit Fee 8.00 8.00

Listing Fee 351.33 347.28

Office Maintenance 67.99 65.62

Postage & Courier Charges 8.79 8.88

Printing & Stationery 8.00 8.00

Professional Charges 145.00 159.81

Rates & Taxes 6.60 9.00

Rent 18.00 18.00

Share Registrar Charges 72.00 72.00

Telephone Expenses 2.13 1.90

Total 926.82 945.41

ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

54



ASHIANA AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

55

NOTES TO FINANCIAL SATATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

1) CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ashiana Agro Industries Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office in 
Tamilnadu, India having its securities listed in BSE Limited and involved in carrying on the business of Trading of Packaging 
material required for various industries.

2)  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Indian Accounting Standards) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read 
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company has prepared these financial 
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis.

(The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company during the year end and are consistent with 
those used in the previous period, except where disclosed otherwise, with those of previous year.)

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of standalone financial statements are consistent with that of [previous 
year, except for the change in accounting policy explained below:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

3 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

3 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows:

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
                 indirectly observable

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
                   unobservable.

ii. Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of the contingent liabilities, at 
the end of the reporting period.

Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of the current events and actions, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of the assets or liabilities in the future period.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimate is revised and/or in future years, as applicable.

iii. Taxes on Income:

• Provision for current taxation is made based on the liability computed in accordance with the relevant tax rates and tax 
laws.

• Provision for Deferred Tax is made for timing differences arising between the taxable incomes and accounting income 
computed using the tax rates and the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet 
date.

• Deferred Tax assets are recognized if there is reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income 
available to realize such assets.

iv. Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of the past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying future economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable measure 
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined on the 
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

• Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

• Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

• Contingent Liabilities: NIL



Contingent assets are not recognized in the standalone financial statements since this may result in the recognition of 
income that may never be realized.

v. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

• The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, 
and

• The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest 
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at 
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, 
as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
"contingent consideration classified as liability" recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies 
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, entities in the Company has made an irrevocable election to present 
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. Such election is made on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. 
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily de-
recognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:
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• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the 
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company 
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company 
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

• Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade 
receivables and bank balance

• Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

• Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

• Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 

• Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

• Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

• Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

• All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant 
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit 
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then 
the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the 
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash 
flows, an entity is required to consider:

• All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected 
life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated 
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade 
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of 
profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for 
various financial instruments is described below:

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented 
as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the 
net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the 
gross carrying amount.

• Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e., as a liability.

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is 
not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared 
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk 
to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial 
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for 
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial 
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by 
Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date 
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. 
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit 
and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no 
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are 
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business 
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident 
to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 
is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the 
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The 
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

vi. Earnings Per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) 
as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive 
potential equity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and 
the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share 
from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the 
period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value 
(i.e., average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits/ reverse share 
splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.



vii. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non - 
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue 
generating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

viii. Related Party Disclosures:

Related Parties

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Serengeti Holdings Private Limited Promoter Shareholder

Mr. Pavan Kumar Matli Whole Time Director

Mr. Vangallu Kodanda Ram Director

Mr. Kranthikumar C Director

Mr. Vamsidhar Reddy M Director

Mrs. Matli Srutha Keerthi Director

Transactions with Related Parties

Name of the Related Party Nature of Transaction (Rs. in ‘000)

Mr. Pavan Kumar Matli Salary 660.00 

ix.  The Company has extended an unsecured loan to Diadem Enterprises Private Limited for Rs. 2,27,00,000/- at an interest rate of 
10% p.a. and the company received back Rs. 77,00,000/-during the financial year 2013-14 and Rs.50,00,000/- during the 
financial year 2024-2025, The balance as on 31st March2025 is Rs. 1,00,00,000/-. The unsecured loan is payable on demand 
and the company got confirmation letter from M/s. Diadem Enterprises Private Limited.

x. Details of Payment to Auditors (Including Goods and Service Tax) (Rs. in ‘000)

Particulars 31/03/2025 31/03/2024

For Statutory Audit 59.00 59.00

xi. Segment Reporting:

Company is operating in a single segment, i.e., trading in packaging material. Hence disclosure of Segment information is not 
applicable.

xii. 

a)  Financial Risk Management - Objectives and Policies:

The Company's financial liabilities comprises of Trade Payables while financial assets comprise of Trade Receivables, Cash 
and Cash Equivalents, Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents. The company has financial risk exposure in 
the form of credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies of the Company are monitored by the Board of 
Directors. The present disclosure made by the Company summarizes the exposure to the Financial Risks.

(b) Credit Risk Management:

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Company. Credit Risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, bank balances and other balances 
with banks. The credit risk arising from the exposure of investing in other balances with banks and bank balances is limited 
and there is no collateral held against these because the counter parties are banks.

(c) Liquidity Risk Management:

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity Risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset 
quickly to meet obligations when due. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily form mismatches of 
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by

(i)   maintaining adequate and sufficient cash and cash equivalents

(ii)    making available the funds from realizing timely maturities of financial assets to meet the obligations when due.
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xiii. Financial Instruments: (Rs. in ‘000)

As at As at 

Financial assets

Financial assets measured at cost:

Trade receivables 3,020.79 3,917.80

Cash and cash equivalents 12,795.64 6,351.04

Bank balances other than above -    -   

      Total 15,816.43 10,268.84

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables 190.76 358.90

      Total 190.76 358.90

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial 
statements approximate their fair values.

xiv. Disclosures of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises (Rs. in ‘000)

Particulars As at March As at March 
31,2025 31,2024

i) The principal amount remaining unpaid 

ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid

iii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year. -   

iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) 
but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

v) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid.

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Total

xv. During the year the Company opted to pay income tax as per Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act,1961 and set off the eligible 
carryforward losses of earlier years and no provision is made in the absence of taxable profits.

xvi Additional Information (5 (ii)(b) of Schedule III)

Traded Goods  CY: 2024-25

Particulars Purchases Sales 
(Rs. in ‘000) (Rs.in ‘000)

Corrugated Boxes 5,708.89 6,747.44

Corrugated Boards 784.08 948.95

Total 6,492.97 7,696.39

                                                                                      PY: 2023-24

Particulars Purchases Sales 
(Rs. in ‘000) (Rs.in ‘000)

Corrugated Boxes 7,348.06 8,602.62

Corrugated Boards 913.94 1,093.59

Total 8,262.00 9,696.21

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
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xvii. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.

xviii. Ratios

Additional Regulatory Information
Clause xiii

CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR

Disclosure of
Ratios Period  Period Variance Variances

(%) (%)

a. Current Ratio 16,268.26 536.13 30.34 10,647.80 476.75 22.33 35.86 -

b. Debt- Equity Ratio - 25,732.13 - - 25,171.04 - - -

c. Debt Service  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Coverage Ratio

d. Return on equity ratio 850.48 25,451.59 0.03 1243.03 24,549.53 0.05 (34.01) -

e. Inventory Turnover Ratio 6,912.97 - - 8,682.01 - - - -

f. Trade Receivables 7,696.39 3,469.30 2.22 9,696.21 3,010.16 3.22 (31.13) Decrease in
Turnover Ratio  Turnover

g. Trade Payables 6,912.97 274.83 25.15 8,262.00 321.14 27.03 (6.96) Decrease in
Turnover Ratio Turnover

h. Net Capital 7,696.39 15,732.13 0.49 9,696.21 10,171.04 0.95 (48.68) -
Turnover Ratio

i. Net Profit Ratio 850.48 7,696.39 0.11 1243.03 9,696.21 0.13 (13.80) -

j. Return on 850.48 25,732.13 0.03 1293.03 25,171.04 0.05 (35.66) -
Capital Employed

k. Return on Investment - - - - - - - -

Numerator Denominator Current Numerator Denominator Previous % of Reason for
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As per our report of event date annexed 
 
K GOPAL RAO & CO.,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI FRN: 000956S
         Sd/-

CA GOPAL KRISHNA RAJU
M No.205929
UDIN:25205929BMLDMK3173

Date:   22nd May, 2025
Place:  Chennai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
V Kodanda Ram

Director

Sd/-
Pavan Kumar M

Whole Time Director 

Sd/-
EDM Menon 

Company Secretary 

Sd/-
G. Nandhivarman

Chief Financial Officer
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/-
EDM Menon 

Company Secretary 



If undelivered please return to :
Ashiana Agro Industries Limited
No.34, Andal Nagar, Baluchetty Chatram,
Kancheepuram Taluk,
Kancheepuram District-631551, Tamil Nadu.
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